CEMETERY SEXTONS/CONTACTS

OF BARRON COUNTY,

WISCONSIN
July 2021
Transcriptions of tombstones for some of the following cemeteries may be found at the Blue Hills Genealogical Society-Barron County (BHGS) Resource Room.  These are for sale.  Some may also be found online on the Barron County GenWeb, through microfilm rental of the Wisconsin State Historical Library in Madison, Wisconsin, at the Family History Centers of the LDS Church, in manuscripts at the Barron County Historical Societies Pioneer Village just west of Cameron, Wisconsin or on site at the Area Research Center-UW Stout in Menomonie, Wisconsin.

There is a difference often found between sexton records and tombstone/cemetery abstracts of inscriptions. Sexton records may have the owner of the lot and/or who is buried on that lot. They may have collected further information, but it is not consistent between sextons. Tombstone/cemetery abstract projects often contain all the pertinent genealogical data found engraved on a monument. These two sources compliment one another. While sexton’s records may not have birth and death dates like a tombstone, they may be all that is available if there was no tombstone or if it has disappeared over time for a number or reasons.

This is a list of the cemeteries in Barron County with the information BHGS has gathered regarding its history, sexton, and contact procedures.  The cemeteries are alphabetical (using the most common name) within each town.

TOWN of ALMENA
LAKEVIEW  (AKA PERLEY) CEMETERY

Section 21 on County K, Town of Almena

Take US 8 NE of Turtle Lake to 2nd St.  The Cemetery is 1 mile north on 2nd St at the top of a hill.  The cemetery is still in operation.

SEXTON:  Dean West
Phone:  (715) 641-1134
The first burial in this cemetery was in 1895.  The remains of about 20 individuals were put in a common grave next to the tool shed without markers on any of them.  Some encroachment occurred which dug up those gravesites.  The cemetery was originally plotted in 18 lots by 10 rows with 12 graves per lot.  No relationship has been determined by the Sexton between any church and the cemetery.  There is no longer a Perley Church.  That church, originally a United Brethren Church, became a United Methodist Church.

The Board for the cemetery meets once each year.  There is an advertisement in the Turtle Lake paper in the spring about the meeting.  Currently the meeting is held the Saturday morning of Memorial Day weekend at the cemetery.

The Almena Centennial Book at the BHGS Resource Room has cemetery listings and burials before 1987.  There is a partial listing of the cemetery on the Barron County GenWeb.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones for this cemetery as of the summer of 2020.
Updated:  June 2020
SACRED HEART CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Town of Almena, Located on Mildred Street, Almena, Wisconsin, across the railroad tracks from the church.

Take Main Street past the church to the first crossroads; go right across the railroad tracks.  The church is located at 1400 Soo Ave W, Almena, WI 54805.  The cemetery is still in operation.
SEXTON:  Roman Molls, 1411 15th St, Barron, WI 54812

Phone:  715-637-7757
Roman has been the sexton of the cemetery since 1978.  Not only does he sell the plots, he digs the graves, buries, reburies etc.  He is very willing to assist in look-ups, and will do all he can to help.  He keeps the records and he also clips the obituaries of the people buried there, and knows quite a bit of the family histories of the people buried in his small community. He has records of the burials, owners of lots, a few cremation records, a map and the location of each grave site.  All records are intact except for 1961-1970 which are missing.  In 1898 there was a major fire in Barron County.  Some wooden crosses were burned in that forest fire and so there are no markers for those graves.
Sacred Heart Catholic Church is now clustered with two other Catholic Churches and the office is at St Anthony’s Catholic Church in Cumberland.  It may be more effective to contact sexton Roman Molls for information.

The Almena Centennial Book at the BHGS Resource Room has cemetery listings and burials.  There is also an abstract on the Barron County GenWeb.
A map of the cemetery is in the BHGS Resource Room.  

BHGS has an abstract from the Barron County GenWeb, but no pictures for this cemetery.

Reviewed:  June 2020
ST. ANN’S CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Section 31, Town of Almena, south of Village of Turtle Lake, on Cemetery Road. 

Take Highway 63 South of Turtle Lake ½ mile into Polk County.  Take the first left at 125th Ave. past the fire hall.  The Cemetery is on the right in Barron County.


From Barron County, the nearest intersection is Pine St. and Cemetery Ave.  Turn south on Pine at Davis Auto Body at Highway 8 and 63.  Turn west to the cemetery toward Polk County.

SEXTON:  Jim Kasper, 1097 1st Street, Turtle Lake, WI 54889
Phone:  715-986-2452
E-mail address:  jjkastor@yahoo.com
Jim (and his wife Joyce) are willing to answer questions.  There is a map and plot purchase and burial records.  Jim and Joyce also take care of St. Charles Cemetery on Hwy D and 3rd St. in Turtle Lake Township.

The cemetery was formed in the late 1800’s. It is still an active cemetery. 
St. Ann’s Catholic Church is now clustered with two other Catholic churches.  The church office is at St. Anthony’s Catholic Church in Cumberland.  St. Anthony’s office is unable to answer questions about St. Ann’s Catholic Cemetery.  The Diocese lost a ledger book, but remaining records can be obtained from the Sexton or his wife (who also take care of three other cemeteries).

An abstract of this cemetery can be found on the Barron County GenWeb.

BHGS has no abstract, pictures or map for this cemetery.
Reviewed:  June 2020

ZION LUTHERAN CEMETERY

Section 11, Town of Almena

The Cemetery is located across from Zion Lutheran Church at 426 17th Ave., Almena WI 54805.  It is between Almena and Comstock
SEXTON:  Walter Koenig, 121 N. Elm St, Turtle Lake, WI 54889

Phone:  715-641-0945

Mail any inquiries to Walter Koenig, P O Box 412, Turtle Lake, WI 54889
Walter is willing to look in the records of this cemetery for information.   Church telephone:  715-357-3012

The cemetery began operations around 1900, and is still in operation today. The records include both the owners of lots and burials.  A map of the Cemetery exists at the Church.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures for this cemetery as of September 2021.  

Updated:  March 2021
TOWN of ARLAND
INDEPENDENT CEMETERY of ARLAND
Section 20, Town of Arland.  
The cemetery is located at the corner of 8th Avenue and 7th Street across from the First Lutheran Church.  The church is not associated with the cemetery.  Church address:  698 8th Ave., Prairie Farm, WI 54762
SEXTON:  Julian Nelson, 810 7th Avenue, Prairie Farm, WI 54762

Phone:  715-455-1755
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Robert Nelson

Phone:  715-455-1950

Robert helps Julian dig graves, and he would be the next to call if Julian is not available.

The first burial was in 1892.  The cemetery is still in operation.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones for this cemetery as of the summer of 2014.  BHGS has a copy of the plot maps as of August 2014.  These can be viewed at the BHG Research Room.
Reviewed: June 2020
TOWN of BARRON

BARRON MENNONITE CHURCH & CEMETERY
Section 21, Town of Barron

The cemetery is located at 1446 15th St, Barron, WI 54812 – just north of the new Justice Center on Highway 25.  Phone:  715-637-3271

A sexton for this cemetery was unable to be identified.  
The first burial in this cemetery was in 2006 (Retha M Mininger), so there are very few burials there.  There is another Mennonite Congregation on Highway P and has burials at the Bethany Cemetery, Cumberland.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures for this cemetery as of 2018.

Reviewed:  July 2021
FIRST LUTHERAN (AKA NORWEGIAN LUTHERAN) CEMETERY 
Section 30, Town of Barron

This cemetery is located west of the City of Barron, north of Highway 8 on 13th Street.

Retired:  Richard Schultz, 1412-13th Street, Barron, WI 54812
Phone:  715-537-5174.  He still has the books for the cemetery.
First Lutheran Church in Barron is the owner of the cemetery.
Phone:  715-537-3575
Mr. Schultz is willing to conduct searches of his records which identify who is buried on each plot.  He has the original ledger.  There is another copy of the records at the church.  Norman Thompson who lives next to the cemetery at 1372 13th St, Barron, WI, also has a copy of the book.
Earliest burials took place in the 1880’s.  The cemetery is still in operation.  It was originally Norwegian.
ARC at Menomonie-Stout has Church and Cemetery Records for 1st Lutheran Church of Barron 1913-1961 (Microform 15-4), 1891-1923 (Mircroform 15-5) 1924-1970 (Microform 15-6), 1971-1979 (Microform 15-7), and 1903-1952 (Microform 17-3).

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of this cemetery as of 2013.

Updated:  July 2021
POOR FARM CEMETERY

Section 34, Town of Barron

This is an abandoned cemetery lying behind the buildings of the Old Jerome Farm at 1581 13th Avenue, Barron, WI 54812.  Drive through the farm on the driveway up the hill to behind the buildings.  Park behind the turkey barns.
The first burial was in 1888.  

BHGS has been compiling a list of those persons buried in this cemetery.  There are only two gravestones plus a Pioneer Memorial stone in this cemetery.  The grass is mowed by the City of Barron.

BHGS has an abstract and photographs (taken in 2008) of the few stones at this cemetery.

Reviewed:  July 2021

WAYSIDE CEMETERY

Section 26, City of Barron

This cemetery is located on Highway 8 in the eastern portion of the City of Barron, north side of road.
SEXTON:  Keith Romsos, 90 N 18th St, Barron, WI 54812
Phone:  715-637-4688
The Barron City Clerk/Treasurer, Tony Slagstad, has the records and is willing to provide assistance.
Address:  Barron City Hall, 1456 East LaSalle Ave, Barron, WI 54812. 
Phone:  715-537-5631
This is a large old cemetery dating the first burial in 1873 and the second in 1878 with lots of burials in the 1880s.  It is still in operation.  Early records are sketchy, but they do have records on burials and purchase of lots.

A map of the plots (numerical, no names) can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

BHGS has photographed and abstracted the gravestones in this cemetery.  This was completed in 2011.  The abstracts and pictures may be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

There is an abstract of this cemetery on the Barron County GenWeb.

Updated:  July 2021

TOWN of CHETEK

LAALAND (AKA JOHNSON FAMILY OR LOLLAND) CEMETERY 
Section 22, Town of Chetek

The cemetery is located outside of Chetek on 28th Street just south of 9th Avenue (west side of road).

SEXTON:  Town of Chetek
The Laaland Scandinavian Evangelical Congregation was organized in 1872, with the cemetery dedicated that same year.  This 2-acre plot was donated by Paul Johnson, an early pioneer.  It is sometimes referred to as Lolland as many early members of the organization came from the Island of Lolland in Denmark.  There are a total of 72 graves, some of them unmarked.   The last burial was in 1941.  This abandoned cemetery is no longer in operation although it is tended by the Township.
BHGS has an abstract of this cemetery and pictures of the stones as of 2011.  A plot map is also available at the BHGS Research Room.
Updated:  July 2021

LAKE VIEW CEMETERY

Section 19, Town of Chetek 

SEXTON:  Donna Bachowski, 220 Stout St, Chetek, WI 54728
Cell Phone:  715-642-0052 (please leave message)
The cemetery association was organized in 1882, but has since become the responsibility of the City of Chetek.  The cemetery is still in operation.  This a large cemetery, and is adjacent to St. Boniface Catholic Cemetery.
BHGS has an incomplete abstract, but few pictures from this cemetery.  There is a map showing the cemetery sections and a list of plot owners at the Research Room.
Updated:  July 2021
ST. BONIFACE CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Section 19, Town of Chetek

SEXTON:   Anne Watton
Phone:  715-577-5303
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Call the church office at 715-924-3514

The St. Boniface Cemetery, approximately 3 acres in size, was purchased from Joseph E. Cartwright for $20.00, on 12 Jun 1889. The cemetery is adjacent to the Lakeview Cemetery. The cemetery is still active.  The burial records are located at the Parish Office located at 419 Third St., Chetek.  These records will have to be viewed at the Office.  Ann Watton is willing to help with lookups.
An abstract of this cemetery can be found on the Barron County GenWeb.

BHGS has no abstract or pictures for this cemetery.

Updated:  June 2020
TOWN of CLINTON 
EBENEZER (AKA SWEDISH) LUTHERAN CEMETERY

Section 17, Town of Clinton

This cemetery is located on 8th Street, 2 miles west of Almena, 1 ½ miles north of Highway 8.

SEXTON:  Timothy Jergenson, 782 16th Avenue, Almena, WI 54805

Phone:  715-357-6159
E-Mail:  tjmj@chibardun.net
This cemetery was associated with the Ebenezer Lutheran Church which was moved and is now located at the Barron County Museum.  The first burial was in the early 1900’s.  This cemetery is still in operation.  In addition to the records, there is a plot map of the cemetery at the BHGS Research Room.
There is an annual Cemetery Board meeting, usually in April at Augustana Lutheran Church in Cumberland.  There is also a spring clean-up each year.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2011) at their Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

POSKIN FIRST (aka NORWEGIAN) LUTHERAN CEMETERY

Section 14, Town of Clinton

This cemetery is located on 15th Avenue west of Poskin.
SEXTON:   Gary Anderson
Phone:  715-931-7703
The cemetery which was first organized in the 1880’s is still in operation. Gary has a map of the cemetery and records of the lot owners and burials.   He is willing to conduct lookups in his records.
Poskin Lutheran Church was located next to the cemetery, but it was torn town in the 1950’s.  This church then joined with First Lutheran Church in Barron (Phone at church is 715-537-3575).

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2009) at their Resource Room.

Updated:  March 2021
ST. MATTHEW (AKA GERMAN) LUTHERAN CEMETERY

Section 19, Town of Clinton

This cemetery is located on the north side of Highway 8, just east of Almena.

SEXTON:  St Matthew Lutheran Church
Phone:  715-357-3267
The first burial at this cemetery is unknown, but the church has celebrated its 115th anniversary.  This cemetery is still in operation.  The records indicate who is buried in the plot but do not list the purchaser of the plot.  Burials include both members and non-members of St Mathew’s Lutheran Church.

There is no map available, but Sally Gores (715-357-3720) is working on one
An abstract of this cemetery can be found on the Barron County GenWeb.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2022) available at the Resource Library.
Updated:  July 2022
TOWN of CRYSTAL LAKE
CRYSTAL LAKE (AKA COMSTOCK AKA LEGACY) CEMETERY

Section 34, Town of Crystal Lake

The cemetery is located just west of Highway 63 on the north side of Comstock.

SEXTON:  John Lombard, 2232 3rd St, Cumberland, WI 54829 (Crystal Lake Town Hall)
Phone:  715-822-8585
The first burial at this cemetery was in the late 1800’s.  Mr. Legacy started the cemetery association about 1980.  The cemetery association dissolved recently and the township has taken over the cemetery.  The cemetery is still in operation and the records include who is buried and who purchased the plot.  Jim Williams and the Town of Crystal Lake have a map.
The Methodist Church of Comstock and Perley Methodist Church were originally associated with this cemetery.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2007) available at the Resource Room.  
Reviewed:  July 2021
TOWN of CUMBERLAND
BETHANY (AKA NEBY) CEMETERY

Section 31, Town of Cumberland

This cemetery is located on the north side of 18th Avenue, east of 6 ½ St, ¼ mile east of County P (6 ½ Street)

SEXTON:  Brad Nyhus, 1876 7th Street, Cumberland, WI 54829
Phone:  715-357-6154 (or cell phone 715-419-2622)
Brad Nyhus has all records for the cemetery.  
This Cemetery was settled by Norwegian immigrants who came to the area in the late 1800s.  The place was originally known as Norwegian Lutheran Cemetery, and may predate its namesake church, which began in 1903.  The cemetery has an interesting steeple from the original church which is used as a sign for the cemetery.  The cemetery used to be associated with Bethany Lutheran Church just down the road.  The church dissolved in 1967 and was torn down.  The congregation merged with First Lutheran Church in Cumberland (1180 8th Ave in Cumberland, Phone 715-822-4416).  The cemetery is still in use and people are still being buried there, especially in the Mennonite area of the cemetery.  First Lutheran church is now a combination of three churches:  First Lutheran in Cumberland, Bethany Lutheran near Almena, and Section Ten/East Cumberland Lutheran Church.
Mennonite burials are made in a separate section at Bethany Cemetery.  The Mennonite Congregation is located north of Almena on Highway P.
There is a cemetery Board comprised of five members – four of whom are descendants of people who are buried there. The Board doesn’t meet regularly.  Two members of the Mennonite congregation are on the cemetery board.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones as of summer 2020.  
Updated:  July 2021
COLLINGWOOD (AKA GERMAN LUTHERAN OR ST LUKES) CEMETERY

Section 26, Town of Cumberland

The cemetery is located on 19th Avenue on T between 10th and 11 ½ St.  The sign at the Cemetery reads “Salem Collingwood”.

SEXTON:  Salem Lutheran Church, 1360 E LaSalle Ave, Barron, WI 54868
Phone:  715-537-3011

E-Mail:  salemmos@chibardun.net

Collingwood Cemetery is a small cemetery with 25 names listed on the BHGS abstract.  It is still being used today (last burial recorded was in 2008).  The cemetery is at the site of the former Collingwood Lutheran Church.  When that church merged with Salem Lutheran Church in Barron, the cemetery became the Salem-Collingwood Cemetery, and the records are kept at Salem Lutheran Church in Barron.
BHGS has an abstract of this Cemetery and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2008) in their Resource Room.  A map of the plots is also available.
Reviewed:  July 2021
EAST CUMBERLAND (AKA SECTION 10) CEMETERY
Section 10, Town of Cumberland

The cemetery is located at 2301 10th St, Cumberland.

SEXTON:  Dale Lake
Phone:  715-357-3290

There are three persons on the East Cumberland Cemetery Board.  The second contact would be:

Wayne Mathison, 1079 22 ½ Ave, Cumberland, WI – Phone:  715-822-8902

Charles Nelson – Phone:  715-822-2971

Charles Nelson is the preferred person to answer inquiries, and he is willing to field questions by telephone.

This is an active cemetery, Lutheran in background, and the earliest people were Norwegian settlers.  Section 10 was settled by Norwegians in the 1870s.  The first settler, named Thompson, is buried there.  The first burial is 1894.  The Section Ten Free Lutheran Church closed about four years ago.

In the 1930-40’s, the church was called East Cumberland Church.  The church split in the 1960’s, and it became the Section 10 Free Lutheran Church.  When the church split, some members joined First Lutheran in Cumberland; this also included the Bethany Church near Almena.  The cemetery remained the East Cumberland Cemetery.
Each of the Board members has a six+ page map of the cemetery which would be difficult to reproduce.  Plats of 8 burial lots were originally sold.  All graves are intact and every grave is marked, according to Mr. Sandve.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2003) for this cemetery at their Resource Room.
Updated:  July 2021
LAKESIDE CEMETERY

Section 7, Town of Cumberland

The cemetery is located on Highway 48 on the east side of Cumberland, south side of the road.  It is on a south bay of Beaver Dam Lake.

SEXTON:  Bob Skinner, Skinner Funeral Home, 1245 First Avenue, Cumberland,

WI 54829. 
Phone:  715-822-2345
The actual owner of the cemetery is the City of Cumberland and duplicate records are forwarded from Skinner Funeral Home to the City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 1356 2nd Ave, Cumberland, WI 54829.  Preferred method of contact is by letter to City Hall so research can be done.  Both Skinner Funeral Home and City Hall are willing to assist in research on purchases and owners and burials at the cemetery.  There is a card file in the City Hall of some older burials.  Skinner Funeral Home maintains obituaries as they appear.  Skinner Funeral Home has all of the maps.
About 1988, Bob and son Bill who is also employed at Skinner Funeral Home, completed an Eagle Scout project for Bill to determine placement of graves.  The result is a computerized record at the Skinner Funeral Home of the burials.  At that time, the Skinners got all of the city maps to determine where the burials are.  Records for early years may be sketchy.  The computerized record can be accessed by name, lot number and by a diagram.  The old maps, some in deteriorating condition, are the better source for older records that predate a 1926 ledger book.  Previously there was a 1945 map and an updated more recent one with family names on the individual lots.

City Hall also maintains Burial Certificates for Disposition of a Human Body for burials within the City of Cumberland.  They also have record of burials at St. Anthony’s Cemetery.

Lakeside Cemetery began operations between 1870 and 1880, and is still in operation.  There are records of 3,884 burials.  Although their records for the early years are sketchy, in some cases they have records on both the burial and purchase of the plots.  There are extensive holdings of old maps.  The original cemetery has been enlarged at least 2 times to the South and West from the lake.  There are unmarked graves and missing stones particularly the time period of the 1918 flu when many burials were made quickly.  Graves were sold in groups of four per lot.

Lakeside Cemetery is a large cemetery with a large sign only on a shed close to the lake.  There is a large memorial to Veterans.  There are areas designated for babies only.

BHGS has no abstract, pictures or map for this cemetery.
Reviewed:  July 2021

ST. ANTHONY ABBOT CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Section 18, Town of Cumberland

The cemetery is located on County Road P, south of the City of Cumberland.  It is on the Northeast corner of the intersection of County Road P (1st Avenue) and St. Anthony St.  The cemetery is across the street from the church.

SEXTON:  Skinner Funeral Home, 1245 First Avenue, Cumberland, WI 54829

Phone:  715-822-2345
Skinner Funeral Home is willing to assist in lookups.

Father Tom Thompson is the person who has access to the records of the Superior Catholic Diocese.  The records themselves are not available at St. Anthony’s nor information on burials. Father Tom Thompson is willing to look up information on the Superior Diocese.  These records are on microfilm.
Contact Father Tom Thompson through the Church:  

St. Anthony Abbot Parish

900 Saint Anthony St

Cumberland, WI 54829


Phone:  715-822-2948  (FAX:  715-822-3588)

The City of Cumberland also maintains a record of burials at St. Anthony’s.  In addition, the City holds Burial Certificates for Disposition of a Human Body at City Hall in Cumberland.

The cemetery was laid out in 1885, when the congregation broke off from St. Mary’s in Cumberland.  They moved about 1 mile south of Cumberland, and consisted of primarily Italian families.   St. Anthony’s Cemetery serves the entire Catholic population of Cumberland at this time.  The cemetery is still in operation.  Although their records for the early years are sketchy, in some cases they have records on both the burial and purchase of the plots. 
There is an Internet site for St. Anthony’s Cemetery:  

http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~saintanthonycemetery.  This site was posted by Tom Grilli, and includes photographs of gravestones sorted by name, location, and birth name.  There is a plat map of the cemetery.

BHGS has no abstract, pictures or map of this cemetery.

Updated:  July 2021

TOWN of DALLAS
DALLAS CEMETERY

Section 11, Town of Dallas
The cemetery is located near Dallas at the intersection of County Highways D and O.

SEXTON:  Alden Halverson
Phone:  715-837-1334  
Alden helps dig the graves at the cemetery.

Alden is willing to check his records and those of the local funeral home for lookups. The records include a map and records of lot owners and burials. The cemetery dates to the 1880’s and is still used to the present.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones for this cemetery (as of September 2010).  They can be found at the BHGS Resource Room.
Updated:  July 2021
GLENWOOD CEMETERY (AKA YOUNG or AKA LOGAN CEMETERY)
Section 6, Town of Dallas
This cemetery is located on 12th St just north of 5th Ave.
SEXTON:  David Jacobsen         
Phone:  715-764-2374

The cemetery is still in operation.  The Cemetery Association held its first meeting in 1886.  Dallas Township takes care of the Cemetery.
David is willing to do searches of the records he has in his possession,
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of this cemetery (as of August 2011).

BHGS has a plot map and list of plot owners at the BHGS Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021
GREENWOOD (aka Grover, O’Flanagan or Pine Creek) CEMETERY 
Section 28, Town of Dallas

The cemetery is located on 1st Avenue between 14th and 15th streets south of County Highway A in Dallas Township
SEXTON:  Duane Link, 1285 1 ½ Ave, Ridgeland, WI 54763
Phone:  715-949-1285
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Kathy Worth, Ridgeland, WI 54763

Duane has the records and a map for the cemetery.  He is willing to do lookups upon request.

The earliest burial at this cemetery was about 1875.  It is still in operation today

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2009) for this cemetery.  A map showing the plots is also at the BHGS Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

ST. PAULS EVANGELICAL (AKA GERMAN) LUTHERAN CEMETERY

Section 29, Town of Dallas
The cemetery is on Highway 25 directly across from the church of the same name.
SEXTON:   Larry Lentz, 1322 1 ½ Avenue, Ridgeland, WI 54763
715-296-9201 (Cellphone)
Mr. Lentz has in his possession the records of this cemetery. The records show who is buried on each lot. The cemetery is still in operation today with a couple of burials each year.   He will check his records for information.  Mr. Lentz has some death certificates and a map.
BHGS has an abstract of this cemetery and pictures as of 2011.

Updated:  July 2021
TOWN of DOVRE
DOVRE LUTHERAN CHURCH CEMETERY

Section 20, Town of Dovre
The cemetery surrounds Dovre Lutheran Church.  It is located on 25th Street between 2nd and 3rd Avenue.
SEXTON:  Bryce Harelstad, 77  25 ½ St, New Auburn, WI 54757
Phone:  715-237-2487
Mr. Harelstad is willing to answer requests for information

The cemetery is still in operation, with members of the Dovre Lutheran Church buried there. Christian  Lundgaard donated 2 acres of land for the cemetery in 1882. The     cemetery was dedicated in 1882. The only map available is an old fragile map of the cemetery.  
BHGS has no abstract or pictures of this cemetery.

They are in the process of developing a new and larger map that will be located inside the church.  Also working on a list of plots and who is buried in each plot (2014).
Reviewed:  July 2021

TOWN of DOYLE

CEDAR LAKE CEMETERY 
Section 3, Town of Doyle

This cemetery is located on Highway 48 just north of 23rd Avenue.

SEXTON:  Dale Kringle
Phone:  715-205-1654
Dale is willing to conduct lookups regarding this cemetery, both of burials and lot purchase which she has computerized.  A map of the plots has been made available to BHGS.  Some of the records were destroyed in a fire in the 1970s.

The first burials took place about 1884 and the cemetery association formed in 1886. The land for the cemetery was purchased from C. Crisler, and the cemetery is still in 

operation. 
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2003) at the Resource Room.  
There is a map of the plots at the BHGS Resource Room.  The sexton has also shared a list of the burials there as of 2009 which can be viewed at the Resource Room
Reviewed:  July 2021

OUR SAVIORS LUTHERAN (AKA CAMPIA) CEMETERY 
Section 8, Town of Doyle

The Cemetery is located just across from the church on Highway 48.

SEXTON:   Myron Anderson, 2163A  21 1/8th Ave., Rice Lake, WI 54868

Phone:  715-234-9477
Mr. Anderson is willing to search the records for anyone needing help in locating a family member in this cemetery.

Myron has the records of the cemetery burials.   Earliest burial recorded on a tombstone was in 1875.  The cemetery is still in operation.  Myron has a list of names of the persons buried in this cemetery.  The list is posted in the cemetery, and a copy is available at the BHGS Resource Room (as of 2009).  Myron has a plot map for the cemetery.
BHGS has an abstract and photographs of the gravestones (as of 2003) for this cemetery at the Resource Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021
TOWN of MAPLE GROVE
MAPLE GROVE BAPTIST CEMETERY 
Section 5, Town of Maple Grove

This cemetery is located near the intersection of 11th Avenue and 13 ½ Street.

SEXTON:  Roger Sundsmo
Phone:  715-257-0071  (Contact phone number is posted at the cemetery)
Mr. Sundsmo has a map of the cemetery which primarily shows who purchased the lot.  He is willing to search his records for inquiries.

The cemetery began operations around 1890, and is still in operation.  It is managed by a non-profit organization (Cemetery Board).  The church used to be across the road from the cemetery, but the church is now gone.  Originally only church members were buried there, but it is now open to anyone, mostly people who have lived in the area.  The Maple Grove Baptist Church merged with the First Baptist Church in Barron.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2008) in the Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021

NEW (NYE) SCANDINAVIA LUTHERAN CEMETERY

Section 36, Town of Maple Grove

This cemetery is located on County Highway O, just south of County Highway D.  The church which was adjacent to the cemetery burned in 2010, but has been rebuilt.
SEXTON:  David Driver, 606 26th St, Chetek, WI 54728
Phone:   715-642-2149
E-Mail:  ddriver@centurytel.net
The first burial said to be around 1870.  The cemetery is still in operation.   The records contain both who is buried in the plot and who purchased the plot.  A copy of the burial records is at the BHGS Research Room.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2014) at the Resource Room.Updated:  June 2022
OLD HILLSDALE (AKA WEISMAN or WISEMAN) CEMETERY 

Section 29, Town of Maple Grove

Located near the intersection of 14th Street and 7 ½ Avenue.

This is an abandoned cemetery, and is not cared for.  Mr. Blivens is an old-timer from the area and he owned the property this cemetery lies on.  Mr. Blivens states that because of excessive vandalism, some bodies and stones have been moved to another cemetery.  There are very few stones remaining and some of these have been broken.
BHGS has an abstract of this cemetery which has been compiled from the four stones which were there in 1981 and from other sources.  This abstract is at the BHGS Resource Room.

Pictures (as of April 2010) of the remaining stones can be seen at the BHGS Research Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021
TOWN of MAPLE PLAIN
MAPLE PLAIN RESERVE CEMETERY
aka SAND LAKE INDIAN BURIAL GROUNDS
Section 28, Town of Maple Plain
Tribal Center Phone:  715-349-2195
Due to the difference in attitudes of the culture to death and burial, there are no tombstones and exact location is not advertised. Any record of burial has generally come from Register of Deeds records or published obituaries.
Updated:  July 2021
TOWN of OAK GROVE
BOHEMIAN NATIONAL CEMETERY

Section 18, Town of Oak Grove
The cemetery is adjacent to Holy Trinity Catholic Cemetery on County Highway ZZ in Haugen.
SEXTON:  Ralph Sokup
Phone :  715-234-4433
The first burial in this cemetery was in 1897, and is still operating today.  Many stones have inscriptions in the Czech language.  The cemetery is not associated with any church.  There is a cemetery board, but it does not meet regularly.
BHGS has an abstract from a Website, but no pictures of this cemetery.

Updated:  July 2021

BRILL (AKA UNION) CEMETERY

Section 13, Town of Oak Grove

The cemetery is adjacent to Grace Lutheran Church on County Highway V.
The cemetery has long been forgotten and denied by some. Some platbooks locate it in Section 13, next to Grace Lutheran Church in that section. Some persons report 5 burials in the long lost cemetery, but there are no gravestones.

Reviewed:  July 2021

HOLY TRINITY CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Section 18, Town of Oak Grove 
The cemetery is adjacent to the Bohemian National Cemetery on County Highway ZZ in Haugen

.

SEXTON:  Steven Konop, P.O. Box 122, Haugen, WI 54841
Phone:  715-234-1773 (Evenings) 
Mr. Konop is willing to answer questions regarding burials at the cemetery.  He has a list of burials which is updated every year.  There is a map showing the location of the graves.
The first burial in the cemetery took place between 1890 and 1900.  The cemetery was laid out by Father Xavier Till around 1893 when the church was organized
BHGS has the list of burials from Mr. Konop in the Resource Room.  No abstract or pictures of the gravestones are available at the BHGS Resource Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021
OUR LADY OF LOURDES CATHOLIC (AKA DOBIE) CEMETERY

Section 36, Town of Oak Grove

The cemetery is located in the town of Dobie on 23rd Street.

SEXTON: Vern Pottinger, 2411 23rd Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-236-3165
For genealogical questions, call the church, but old information may be at the Diocese of Superior.  No map exists for the cemetery, although the Dobie Church does assign the new plots.

Our Lady of Lourdes was most likely the very first Catholic cemetery in Barron County, with knowledge of the church going back to 1869. According to church lore, the very first burial was that of a man carried from Rice Lake on poles over the Indian trail.  In the     earliest days, wooden crosses marked the graves. They have since decayed, and no church records exist for burials prior to 1881. The earliest grave marked in this cemetery dates to 1875. A fire in the early 1900’s destroyed a good portion or early records. 
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of this cemetery as of summer 2013.
Updated: July 2021
TOWN of PRAIRIE FARM
AKERS CEMETERY

Section 30, Town of Prairie Farm

The cemetery is located west of Prairie Farm at Highway A and 7th Street

SEXTON:  Karen Kahl, 384 9th St., Prairie Farm, WI 54762
Phone:  715-455-1217
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Duane Hanson, Prairie Farm, WI

Mrs. Kahl is willing to help anyone find burial sites or answer questions.

The date of the first burial is unknown.  Solum and Akers Churches united and services were held at Akers until it burned in 1948.  The original cemetery records burned in this fire.  The cemetery records that exist now are records that were put together after the fire.  The Solum Lutheran Church building was moved to Ridgeland and is still in use there.  The church is now the United Lutheran Church of Prairie Farm.

The cemetery board meets annually, usually in May.  A notice of the meeting is published in the Barron News-Shield prior to the meeting.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures for this cemetery as of summer 2013.  There is a plot map with names at the BHGS Resource Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021
EVERGREEN CEMETERY

Section 21, Town of Prairie Farm

The cemetery is in the village of Prairie Farm, WI.

SEXTON:  Barb Bender, 328 8 ¾ Street, Prairie Farm, WI 54762
Phone:  715-455-1471
E-Mail:  obbender@chibardun.net
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Tim Hafele, 149 10th Street, Ridgeland, WI 54763

Phone:  715-455-1443 (Secretary Treasurer of Cemetery Association)

Barb Bender is the President of the Cemetery Association.  She would prefer to be contacted by telephone; E-Mail would be a second choice.   The annual meeting of the Cemetery Association is the first Tuesday of May at the United Lutheran Church in Prairie Farm at 7:00 pm.
The oldest date on a tombstone is 1872, but Barb believes there are older burials.  She relates there were burials on a hill just outside of Prairie Farm that were later moved to Evergreen Cemetery when the cemetery was started.  The records burned in 1923. Barb is trying to recreate the information regarding burials, but some discrepancies have been found.  There is a map with the designation of lot and plot numbers with the original owners names. This is still an active cemetery.
BHGS has no abstract or pictures from this cemetery.

Reviewed:  July 2021
ST. PAULS (AKA GERMAN LUTHERAN) CEMETERY 
Section 35, Town of Prairie Farm

The cemetery is located adjacent to the church on Townline Road outside of Ridgeland.

SEXTON:  Nina Lewis, 125 Tonnar Street S, Ridgeland, WI 54763

Phone:  715-949-1284
St. Paul Evangelical Lutheran Church is still an active church.  Call the parsonage next to the church if Nina is not available.  Phone:  715-949-1651
Nina Lewis is the Secretary of the Cemetery Board.  She would prefer to receive inquiries by mail.  The records include who is buried in the plot and the more recent records also include who purchased the lot.

The cemetery was begun in the 1870’s. It is a closed cemetery meaning that only members of the church may buy lots in the cemetery. There are records of both lot owners and burials. 
BHGS has an abstract and photographs of this cemetery as of summer 2012.

Reviewed:  July 2021

SOLUM CEMETERY

Section 30, Town of Prairie Farm
SEXTON:  No contact person was found
The records show who is buried in each plot.  The records are at the United Lutheran Church of Prairie Farm (715-455-1034).

The cemetery was created in 1872 with 2 ½ acres donated by Christian Woxen, about the same time the Solum Norwegian Evangelical Lutheran Church was organized.  This cemetery is inactive, however there are plots that are still available.

BHGS has an abstract and photographs of this cemetery as of summer 2012.
Reviewed:  July 2021

SUNSET (aka TURTLE CREEK) CEMETERY 
Section 17, Town of Prairie Farm

The cemetery is located just west of Prairie Farm on Highway A.

SEXTON:  Wayne Norberg, 435 7 ½ Street, Prairie Farm, WI 54762

Phone:  715-455-1958 (President of the Cemetery Board)
SECONDARY CONTACTS:  

    Sue Glaser:  Phone:  715-491-3904 (Cell) – BHGS use only

    Scott Sand (Vice President of Cemetery Board);  Phone:  715-455-1621 (home);


715-790-6805 (Cell)  - BHGS use only

The earliest burial in the cemetery recorded on a tombstone was in 1874.  Wayne states there are about 8 early graves in the cemetery which are not marked.  The records of the cemetery include owners of the plots and those buried.   The cemetery may also be referred to as the Turtle Creek Cemetery.  Most of the burials are from the United Lutheran Church of Prairie Farm, but burials may come from all over.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones for this cemetery (as of 2012) at the Research Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021
TOWN of PRAIRIE LAKE
OTTERHOLT CEMETERY
Section 28, Town of Prairie Lake

The cemetery is located on 21st Street south of County Road D

SEXTON:   Patricia A Brewer, 1821 8th Ave, Chetek, WI 54728
Phone:  (Treasurer of Town of Prairie Lake)
E-Mail: picnichillsfarm@yahoo.com   (Re: Cemeteries)
Secondary Contact:  Town of Prairie Lake, 715-924-2580

The earliest date of burial recorded on a tombstone id 1875.  The cemetery is still in operation.  The records of owners of plots are more extensive than those of burials.  The town of Prairie Lake has the most complete records.  The cemetery is the property of the Town of Prairie Lake.
Pat Brewer has many obituaries for the persons buried in this cemetery.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2009) at their Resource 

Room.  A map of the plots and the burials in each plot can be viewed at the BHGS Research Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

PLEASANT PLAIN (AKA JOELSON OR PRAIRIE LAKE) CEMETERY
Section 11, Town of Prairie Lake

This cemetery is located on 10th Avenue (County Hwy OO) just west of County Road SS

SEXTON:   Patricia A Brewer, 1821 8th Ave, Chetek, WI 54728

Phone:  (Treasurer of Prairie Lake Township)
E-Mail: picnichillsfarm@yahoo.com   (Re: Cemeteries)

The earliest burial recorded on a tombstone was in 1874.  Pat is more than willing to help with lookups of her records. The cemetery is still in operation.  She has many obituaries for the persons buried in this cemetery.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2008) at their Resource 

Room.  A map of the plots and the burials in each plot can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

 TOWN of RICE LAKE
NORA CEMETERY 
Section 16, City of Rice Lake

This cemetery is located on Highway 48 and Lakeshore Drive in the City of Rice Lake.

SEXTON:  Mike Ashlin, 326 South Main Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868

Phone:  715-296-8800
E-Mail:  mashlin@ricelakegov.org
Mike works for the Community Services Department of Rice Lake.  He is willing to help locate information relating to Nora Cemetery.  Phone at Rice Lake City Hall:  715-234-9235
The cemetery began operation around 1870 and is still in operation. The records include who is buried and who purchased the plot.
An abstract of this cemetery can be found on the Barron County GenWeb.

For burial records and maps, stop at the Community Services Department Offices located at 910 S. Wisconsin Avenue in Rice Lake or call 715-234-7402

BHGS has no abstract or pictures of this cemetery.

Updated:  July 2021
ORCHARD BEACH CEMETERY 
Section 27, Town of Rice Lake

The cemetery is located in the City of Rice Lake on Orchard Beach Drive.

SEXTON:  Mike Ashlin, 326 South Main Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868

Phone:  715-234-7402

E-Mail:  mashlin@ricelakegov.org
Mike works for the Community Services Department of Rice Lake.  He is willing to help locate information relating to Orchard Beach Cemetery.  Phone at Rice Lake City Hall:  715-234-9235
The cemetery began operation around 1870 and is still in operation.  The records include burials and who purchased the lot.

BHGS has an abstract and photographs of the gravestones (as of 2003) at the Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021
ST. JOSEPH’S CATHOLIC CEMETERY
Section 33, City of Rice Lake

The cemetery is located at the corner of South Street and Main Street in the City of Rice Lake.

SEXTON:  St. Joseph Catholic Church, 111 West Marshall Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868

Phone:  715-234-2032

The earliest burials in this cemetery were in the 1880s.   There are two areas where only 
babies are buried.  A number of priests and sisters are buried in this cemetery.

BHGS has abstracted and photographed the gravestones as of summer 2012.  The completed abstracts and pictures may be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.
A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

SWEDE CEMETERY 
Section 30, Town of Rice Lake

This cemetery can be located on 19th Avenue and 18th Street.

SEXTON:  Janet Tomesh, 1830 Macauley Ave, Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-234-8087 – Janet is the clerk/treasurer for the Town of Rice Lake
E-Mail:  townofrl@charter.net
The above information is for the Town Hall for the Town of Rice Lake.

The earliest burials in the cemetery took place between 1870 & 1880.  The former Swedish Lutheran Emanuel Church Cemetery was taken over by the township when the church closed.  The cemetery records began in the period starting in 1905 and were reorganized into their present form in 1997.  They include both burials and who purchased the plot.  The cemetery is still in operation today.

BHGS has an abstract and photographs of the gravestones (as of 2003) at the Resource Room.  There is also a copy of the burial and plot information as of 2003 at the Resource Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021

TOWN of SIOUX CREEK
EVERGREEN (AKA PINE CREEK AKA DAVIS ) CEMETERY
Section 31, Town of Sioux Creek

Cemetery is located on 18 ½ Street just north of ½ Avenue.

SEXTON:  Marilyn Anderson, PO Box 244, Dallas, WI 54733 or 1849 ¼ Avenue, New Auburn, WI 54757.

Phone:  715-837-1471 (Marilyn is secretary/treasurer of the cemetery association)
E-Mail:  urdalen@hotmail.com
SECONDARY CONTACTS:  Kathy Martin, Phone 715-837-1471 (Clerk of Sioux Creek Township)


Jerry Donath, Phone: 715-837-1066  (Sexton for Evergreen Cemetery)

Doug Huset, Phone:  715-837-1072; 1961 4th Ave, Chetek, WI 54728
Marilyn is very willing to help search for ancestors.  She has family histories of original founders of the cemetery.  Some markers are gone.  Some people are in unmarked graves.  
Evergreen Cemetery was founded in 1880 by New York people of Yankee origin.  The cemetery records include both lot owners and burials.  The earliest recorded death on a tombstone was 1882 and the cemetery is still in operation and has been expanded.  Most of the surnames are Davis or Anderson or related to one of the families.
The Cemetery Board meets the Monday before Memorial Day at the Sioux Creek Town Hall.

BHGS has an abstract and photographs of the gravestones (as of 2007) at the Resource Room.

A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

MILLER FAMILY CEMETERY

Section 9, Town of Sioux Creek


Located on 20th Street just north of 4th Avenue

This is a cemetery which was recently identified by driving past it.  It is on private property, fenced and locked, and is grazed by goats.  This is a private Amish Cemetery.
Reviewed:  July 2021
SIOUX CREEK CEMETERY (AKA GARNER AKA MASSIE AKA FULLER CEMETERY)
Section 20, Town of Sioux Creek

The cemetery is located at the southwest corner of the intersection 3rd Avenue and 19 ½ Street.  It is situated on a hillside and surrounded by trees.

SEXTON:  Kathleen Martin, 1849 1/4th Avenue, New Auburn, WI 54757 (Town Clerk)
Phone:  715-837-1754 (Town Hall) or 715-837-1471 (Home)

E-Mail:  Kass@chibardun.net
Clerk/Treasurer of Town of Sioux Creek:  Liza Schroeder, Phone 715-837-1007

Kathleen is willing to search the old map or the two old journals that have come into her 

possession from previous record holders. The one old journal seems to be the minutes of the Cemetery Association, begun in 1880.  

The original land for the cemetery was donated by Bradley B Fuller.  He arrived in Sioux Creek in 1874.   Earliest recorded death date on a tombstone is 1876.  The settlers were pioneer stock from the eastern part of the United States.  The Fuller family group of stones is close to the road, and some of these stones have been repaired in recent years.  Fuller was a town chair of Dallas Township and a Civil War Veteran.  Many Fuller and Massie relatives are buried in this cemetery.  There are still burials being made in this cemetery.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2009) at the Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021

TOWN of STANFOLD
STANFOLD LUTHERAN CEMETERY
Section 22, Town of Stanfold.

This cemetery is located west of Rice Lake on Highway 48 just east of the intersection with Highway 25.  It is located by the church.
SEXTON:  George P. Larsen, 1738-21st Ave., Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-234-4515

SECONDARY CONTACT:  Richard Peterson:  Phone:  715-234-7442

The records for this cemetery include both owners of  the lots and burials. The cemetery is still in operation and George is willing to look in his records for information to help the researcher.   Earliest recorded death date on a tombstone was 1893.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2003) at their Resource Room.

NOTE:  Years ago, perhaps in the very beginning, Stanfold Township extended out into the Dobie Area.  So on a rare occasion, researchers have contacted George looking for relatives buried in the “Stanfold Cemetery” and the relatives are buried in the Dobie Cemetery which was part of Stanfold Township.


Reviewed:  July 2021
WIESNER CEMETERY 
Section 2, Town of Stanfold

The cemetery is located on 23 1/2 Avenue
SEXTON:  Town of Stanfold, 1293 20 ½ Avenue, Cumberland, WI 54829

Phone:  715-822-2306 (Home Phone) – Pat is the chair of the Town of Stanfold 

E-Mail:  deette44@yahoo.com 
Secondary Contact:  Robin Fankhauser, 715-296-8638

The earliest burial in the cemetery is recorded as 1885. The cemetery is still in operation.  The cemetery was begun as a family cemetery.

Skinner-Jarocki Funeral Home in Rice Lake has a map of this cemetery.  It was updated and corrected about 2003 by the previous Jarocki Funeral Home owners.  They have a map with the names of those buried there, when they were known or found on a tombstone. They are willing to make a search of the map.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2003) at their Resource Room.  There have been about six burials since 2003.
A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021

TOWN of STANLEY
FAABERG CEMETERY

Section 25, Town of Stanley

The cemetery is located at the corner of 23rd St and 13th Avenue

SEXTON:   Bob Olson, 715-642-4005

Contact Dennis Weise, 715-736-1236.  He has all the records.

Dennis has records including a map and abstract. The Faaberg Church purchased  2 acres of land and plotted it as a cemetery in 1882. The earliest recorded death date on a tombstone is 1876. Gary is willing to help by searching his records, which include owners of lots and burials.
Faaberg Church is no longer there – It used to be on Highway 8.  The cemetery is overseen and run by Faith Lutheran Church in Cameron.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the cemetery as of 2010.  A map showing the plot layout and a list of names by lot number can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021

MEADOW CREEK CEMETERY 
Section 4, Town of Stanley

The cemetery is located on the east side of SS just south or Rice Lake

SEXTON:  Adaline Keef, 2167 15 Ave, Cameron, WI 54822 (Treasurer of Town of Stanley)
Phone:  715-458-4783  or  715-642-2282
E-Mail:  tstanleytreas@chibardun.net
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Town Hall of Stanley Township, Phone:  715-458-3271
The old records were destroyed in a tornado which struck the area in 1929. The new records include a map with a more extensive accounting of lot owners and burials for the more recent burials. Earliest recorded death date on a tombstone was 1873. Adeline is willing to do lookups in her records.
A partial list of the names of people buried at the cemetery is located at the Stanley Town Hall.  There is also a map at the Town Hall.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2003) at their Resource Room.  A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021
PINE GROVE CEMETERY

Section 27, Town of Stanley

The cemetery is located east of Cameron on 13 3/4th Avenue

SEXTON:  Cameron Village Hall, 300 N 1st Street, Cameron, WI 54822
Phone:  715-458-2117
E-Mail:  rolson@chibardun.net

The records include a map and lot owners with some burials noted. The earliest found death date recorded on a tombstone was in 1895. The Village Hall is willing to help researchers with lookups in their records.  Most of the records are current.  Rausch-Lundeen Funeral Home does have some of the records.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of this cemetery as of 2017.  
Reviewed:  July 2021
TOWN of SUMNER
NEW SUMNER CEMETERY
Section 31, Town of Sumner

The cemetery is located south of Highway 8 on County Road M – west side of the road just south of village of Sumner.

SEXTON:  Attn. David Stepanek, Town Clerk, Sumner Town Hall, 1550 24 ½ Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-859-6520 (Home Phone)
The earliest known burial in this cemetery is from 1879. There are often the records of burial and purchase for each plot. Sandra will make searches in her records.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the cemetery stones as of 2015.

A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021
OLD SUMNER CEMETERY

Section 31, Town of Sumner

The cemetery is located south of Highway 8 on County Road M – east side of the road just south of village of Sumner.

SEXTON:  Attn. David Stepanek, Town Clerk, Sumner Town Hall, 1550 24 ½ Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-859-6520 (Home Phone)
This old cemetery, begun about 1875 no longer has room for any burials. The old records are sketchy.   Some refer to who is buried on a plot, and some to who purchased the     plot.  And Sandra knows for a fact, that the old map of the cemetery is sometimes wrong.  Whatever the condition, Sandra said she is willing to help when she is able. 

BHGS has an abstract of the cemetery and pictures of the gravestones (as of summer of 2011).  A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Updated:  July 2021

PIONEER REST CEMETERY (aka Scandinavian Cemetery)

Section 6, Town of Sumner 

The cemetery can be located off County Road M on private property
SEXTON:  David Bandli, 1671 25th Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-859-2948
SECONDARY CONTACT:  Del Halverson, 1579 23-24 ½ St, Rice Lake, WI 54868
Phone:  715-458-4294

The first burial in the cemetery was in 1882 and the cemetery is still in operation. Although David is the sexton, there  is also the book written by his mother, Esther Bandli available at the Rice Lake Public Library. The book is titled PIONEER REST, A HISTORY OF HALVERSON HOMESTEAD COMMUNITY. The book covers all known information from the cemetery.
This is a private cemetery.  A Cemetery Association manages the cemetery.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 1994) for this cemetery.

A map of the plots can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.  There are very few unmarked graves.
Updated:  July 2021
TOWN of TURTLE LAKE
BETHANY LUTHERAN (AKA FINNISH) CEMETERY
Section 12, Town of Turtle Lake
The cemetery is located on 5th Street south of 10 ½ Ave.
SEXTON:  Jim and Bev Wichart (President of church when it was closed)


1106 8 ½ St, Barron, WI 54812

PHONE:  715-357-3538

SECONDARY CONTACT:  John Mayla (Cemetery Association President)
Phone:  715-537-5459

This cemetery was associated with Bethany Lutheran Church, thought to be founded by Finnish settlers in about 1909.  Bethany Lutheran Church closed in August 2011.  The records for the church were sent to the synod.  The church and cemetery became separated.  This is an active cemetery, and still has burials.  Jim has a map and abstract for the cemetery.
BHGS has an abstract and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2009) for this cemetery.

The abstract which is listed for this cemetery on the Barron County GenWeb is not for this cemetery.

Reviewed:  July 2021

MOON LAKE (AKA EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN) CEMETERY

Section 16, Town of Turtle Lake
The cemetery is located on Co. Rd. K by Big Moon Lake.
SEXTON:  Mike Schradel, Treasurer of Cemetery Association, 368 8th Ave, Clayton, WI 54004
Phone:  715-641-2426
E-Mail:  lcpizzatlwi@amerytel.net

SECONDARY CONTACT:  Bill Schradel (President of Cemetery Association, 350 8th Ave, Clayton, WI 54005; Phone: 715-948-2827

There was a church on the property – Peace Lutheran Church (German??).  The congregation merged with Zion Lutheran Church near Comstock.

Mike has a map of burials and plots.  It is an active cemetery.

BHGS has an abstract of the cemetery and pictures of the gravestones (as of 2006) for this cemetery.

Updated:  July 2021

ST. CHARLES CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Section 7, Town of Turtle Lake
The cemetery is located on the north side of Co. Rd. D, where 3rd Street runs into D.
SEXTON:  Jim Kasper, address 1097-1st Street, Turtle Lake, Wi 54889,

Phone: (715) 986-2452
E-mail address jjkastor@yahoo.com. 
This small cemetery is still active and Jim will help with searches. He has a map for the cemetery and St. Anthony’s Church in Cumberland has the burial records.  St. Anthony’s Church address is 900 St. Anthony, Cumberland, WI 54829, phone 715-822-2748. Cemetery originated circa the late 1880’s.  Years ago St. Charles Catholic Church was next to the cemetery.  This was prior to 1946.
There is one church office located at St. Anthony’s Catholic Church for Sacred Heart Catholic Church, Almena, WI; St. Ann’s Catholic Church is Turtle Lake, WI; and St. Anthony’s Catholic Church near Cumberland, WI.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures for this cemetery as of April 2010.  More information about the cemetery can be found with the cemetery abstract at the BHGS Research Room.
Reviewed:  July 2021

MOUNT HOPE/SILVER CREEK LUTHERAN (formerly IMMANUEL LUTHERAN) CEMETERY
Section 35, Town of Turtle Lake
The cemetery is located on the south side of Co. Rd. D (7th Ave), east of Co. Rd K behind the Immanuel Lutheran Church.

SEXTON:  Albert Eggert, 453 7th Ave, Clayton, WI 54005  (Preferred Contact Method)
Phone:  715-948-2548 (Home); 715-949-1795 (Work)  (Do not post phone number on Website)
SECONDARY CONTACTS:  The Cemetery Board consisting of Dennis Becker and 
Scott and Tonia Grosskreutz, 698 5th St, Clayton, WI 54004 (Summer Only)

Clayton had several Immanuel Lutheran Churches and there was much confusion, so this particular church changed its name from Immanuel of Silver Creek to just Silver Creek Lutheran Church.  The church is still active; the cemetery is also still active.  The church was founded in 1897.

The church telephone is connected with St. Matthew’s Lutheran Church in Almena.  So any contact should be with St. Matthew’s Lutheran Church at 315 Clinton St, Almena, WI 54805.  The minister, Rev. Clinton Hoff, is shared between Silver Creek Lutheran Church and St. Matthew’s Lutheran Church.
Albert Eggert has a map of the cemetery plots and burials.

BHGS has an abstract and pictures for this cemetery as of July, 2022.

Updated:  July 2022
TOWN of VANCE CREEK
HOLY TRINITY RUSSIAN ORTHODOX CEMETERY
Section 5, Town of Vance Creek
The cemetery is located on 1st Street north of 5th Avenue, beside the Holy Trinity Russian Orthodox Church.

SEXTON:  Holy Trinity Russian Orthodox Church, 523 1st St, Clayton, WI 54004 (Rev. Chris Wojcik)
Phone:  715-948-2203

CONTACTS:  Robert Fall

Phone:  715-948-2644 or 715-641-2013 (cellphone)
The members of this church came from the Carpathian Galician Russia, from the former Austro Hungarian area – present day Czech Republic.  They formed new lives for themselves in 1896 near Clayton, WI.  The church was finished in 1902; it burned before 1921 and a new church has been built.
The oldest tombstone dates to 1901.  There are many unmarked graves, probably infants.  Jacob has a map and a cemetery directory.  Jacob has a list of burials which is updated regularly.  He plans to take a photo of every headstone and post on their church website.

BHGS has no abstract or pictures for this cemetery.

An abstract of this cemetery can be found on the Barron County GenWeb.

Updated:  July 2021

REEVE (AKA VANCE CREEK) CEMETERY

Section 29, Town of Vance Creek
The cemetery is located about ½ mile east of Reeve, on the south side of County Road A.

SEXTON:  Virgil Barthman, 126 1 ½ St, Clear Lake, WI 54005
Phone:  715-263-2593

SECONDARY CONTACTS:  Art Bergman (President of Cemetery Association), Phone:  715-263-2418

Lucy Hornick, Phone 715-205-6572 (cellphone)

This is a municipal cemetery that commenced operation in the early 1900’s.  It is still in operation. Virgil will do lookups for the persons buried in the cermetery, and who purchased the lot. The earliest burial was mid-1800’s.
The ARC at Menomonie has a record of the burials in this cemetery.
BHGS has an abstract with pictures for this cemetery as of summer 2011.  A plot map can be viewed at the BHGS Resource Room.

Reviewed:  July 2021

ST. JOHNS CATHOLIC CEMETERY

Section 9, Town of Vance Creek
The cemetery is located on 5th Ave. just east of Co. Rd. K.
SEXTON- Jim Kasper, 1097 1st Street, Turtle Lake, WI 54889
Phone:  (715)986-2452
E-mail address jjkastor@yahoo.com. 
Cemetery believed to have begun in late 1800’s. It is a very small cemetery that has not seen any burials for years.  Jim Kasper will help with lookups, but St. Anthony Church has the burial records. This cemetery is maintained by St. Anthony Catholic Church.  The last burial there was about 1950.  There was a church there many years ago, probably named St. John’s Catholic Church.
BHGS has an abstract with pictures for this cemetery as of 2010.

Reviewed:  July 2021
BORDER HOPPING CEMETERIES

(For information regarding individuals who lived close to the county borders and who may have been buried in a cemetery over the county line, check these counties for further information on the following cemeteries.)

DUNN COUNTY

· Vanceburg Cemetery in section 9, Sheridan Township.

· Solum II Cemetery

· West Akers Cemetery
POLK COUNTY

· Mt. Hope Cemetery in Beaver Twp. Section 36.
RUSK COUNTY

*Unknown named” cemetery- Strickland Twp. Section 17
CHIPPEWA COUNTY

· Twin Lakes Cemetery in Section 5 Sampson Twp. And all cemeteries within the village of New Auburn.
BURNETT COUNTY
WASHBURN COUNTY

· Lakeside Cemetery- Barronette Twp. Section 29. (Contact Skinners Fun. Home in Cumberland and Sandra Jerry for information)
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